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MSC METROPOLITAN STEEL CORPORATION LIMITED

VISION

BE A MARKET LEADER IN STEEL INDUSTRY THROUGH
DIVERSIFICATION, PROFESSIONALISM OPTIMUM USE OF
RESOURCES & ENSURING STAKE HOLDERS INTEREST

MISSION

METROPOLITAN STEEL CORPORATION LIMITED 1S COMMITTED TO:
) BE ETHICAL IN ITS PRACTICES

PRODUCE TO THE HIGHEST QUALITY STANDARDS

FULFILL AND EXCEED THE QUALITY EXPECTATIONS OF OUR CUSTOMERS
OPERATE THROUGH TEAM WORK

EXCEL THROUGH CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT
RETAIN OUR POSITION AS MARKET LEADER
CONFORM WITH ENVOIRONMENTAL PROTECTION STANDARS
ENSURE A FAIR RETURN TO SHAREHOLDERS
FULFILL SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITES
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METROPOLITAN STEEL CORPORATION LIMITED
MOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is herehy given that the 9% Annual General Meetings of 1hs Company will be held on Friday
October 25, 2024 at 10:00 a.ni. of the Registered [Tend office faciory premisss on plot Hn._H‘H-m.
adjacent Nagaria Textile Mill, Landhi Industrial Area, Knmachi 1o transact the following business:

1. ORDINARY BUSINESS:

i
ii.
i

To conlinn the minutes of the 68* Annual General Meeling hekl on Oelober 27, 202).

To receive and adopt the sudited accounis of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024
with the Audit repont, Directors” Repon and review report by the chairman thereon;

To appoint auditor for the year ending Junc 30, 2025 and fix their remuneration.

Any ofher busimess with the pennission of the chair,

2. SPECIAL BUSINESS;
Toconsider and if deemed appropriate to pass with or without modification the following Resalution
ns special Resolution,
RESOLYED THAT as recommended by board of directors (who are not interested in the transacton
below) and subject 1o all regulatory approvals the company be and is authorised in terms of section
152 af the companies act 2017 to grant a loan of 25 million to Company’s Chairman/Director
Mohmood Ali Mehkri in one or more tranches for the period of two years subject io all applicable

regulatory approvals,
Karachi- 03-10-2024 By Crder ol the Board
Abul Mojahid
Company Secretary
HOTES

The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 19-10-2024 1o 25-10-
2024 (both days inchsive)

A member entitled 0 atlend and vole may appoint any other member as his /et proxy.
The matriment appoinling proxy must be received ol the Registered Offfce of the company
duly stamped and signed not bster than 48 hours belore the meeling.

CC Account Holders will furiber have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as lud
down in Cincular 1 of Janusry 26, 2004 issuecd by the Securitics Exchange Commission of
Pakisian

Far Attending the Meeting:

In case of individuals, the account hobder or sub-account holder andior the porson whose
mmiﬂumiﬂmmqmmmﬂﬂhnh rqgjitralkmdeuil.lmq:hud:dupqm
Regulations, shall authenticate his /her identity by showing his /her original Mational
Identity Card WIC or vnginal passport ol the time of allending the mecting.

In case of corporate entity the Board of Directors resolufion/power of sttomey with
specimen signatures of the nomince shall be produced {unless it bas been provided carlicr)
at the time of the mesting.

Participation through video conferencing Facilicy:

The sharcholders, can participate in the AGM proceedings via video link abw, those
members wha are willing o attend and participate in the AGM via video link are requested
to regisier themselves by sending an email along with fullowing particulars and valid copy
of both sides of CHIC af enuail address mselfeybernat pk and amajahiddinisp ocm with
subject of *Registration for AGM" not less than 48 hours bufore e time of the meeting:

Mame of Sharehaller CHIC Mo FohidCDC Ace. ¥ _| Coll Mo Email Address

Members who will be registered, aller necessary verification as per the above
will be provided a password protecied video link by the company via emadl. The sl hink
will remain open 10:00 am on the date of AGM (6] the end of the mecting.

For Appointing Prozy:

In case of individuals the account holder or sub eccount holder and or the peron whose
securities are in group sccount and thair registration defwils are upload a3 per the
Regulations, shall submit the proxy fonm as per the above requirement

The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, sddresses and NIC
nurnbers shall be mentioned on the form

Atteated copies of NIC or the passport of the beneficial ownen and the proxy ahall be
fisrnished with the proxy form.

The proxy shall produse his original NIC passport af the Hme of the meeling

In case of corporate entity, the Doard of Directors” resolution/power of atiomey with the
specimven Signatures shall be submiticd (unless it has been provided earlier) almg with
proxy form to the Company.

Members are requesied to nedify any change in their addresses,
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MSC METROPOLITAN STEEL CORPORATION LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

The Board of Directors of the Company present the Annual Report together with annual audited financial
results of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2024,

The Board of Directors of the Company as of 30 June 2024 consists of:

Total Number o fors
Men

Women

S L =]

The names and composition of the Board of Directors as of 30 June 2023 are as follows:

Category Names

Non-Execurive Directors Mr. Mehmood Ali Mehkri
Mrs. Uzma Mehmood Ali Mehkri
Mr. Irshad Ali Pitafi
Mrs. Sofia Mehkari

ecutive Directors Mr. Muhammad Umar Mehkari

Mrs. Sara Mehmood Mehkri
Mrs. Saba Mehkari Faroogqui

Female Directors Mrs. Sara Mehmood Mehkri
Mrs. Saba Mehkari Farooqui
Mrs. Sofia Mehkari

Mrs. Uzma Mebmood Ali Mehkri

OVERVIEW OF GLOBAL, LOCAL ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL SCENERIO

In current fiscal year the overall economy faced significant challenges due to high inflation and rise in fiscal
deficit However, there was a positive point by government to provide potential for growth by taking IMF
funding, augmenting exports, and increasing foreign exchange reserved The government promises to
reforms energy interest rate, fiscal & monitoring policy and all sectors is anticipated, but delay in it lead to
a substantial risk. The high interest rates continue to suppress the manufacturing sector, The overall Pakistan
markei is slow and demand downtumn. The rise in KIBOR lead 1o an escalating cost for manufacturer that
diminish supply in the local market.
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Pakistan economy face critical economic crises that cause severe economic challenges for months due o
which food, gas and oil prices have risen, Poor governance and low productivity per capita have contributed
to a balance of payment crises, where the country is unable to cam enough foreign exchange to find the
imports that it consuames.

YE w ND LOCA ]

The overall demand of steel products is decline that lead to dwindle HRC prices FOB US 650 to
FOB US 520 both in china and other countries.It is globally anticipated that future outlook is
positive as gradually demand of steel product will be increased as expected both china and india ,
the major consumers of Hot Rolled Coils(HRC).

Pakistan market has been severely affected with political and economic uncertainty and high
interest rate. The decline rupee parity to US Dollar, high interest rate and increase in energy prices
had led the on-going economic crises. Therefore, stesl demand subdued in both auto and
construction sector. The business entities are vulnerable to unpredictable uncertainty.

PERFO N FNM LITANSTEEL CORPORATION LIMITE

Alhamdulillah, despite these macroeconomic hardships the market remained receptive to your company.
The company face stern economic pressure due to slug in demand of steel products. The capacity utilization
during the current fiscal year is 6.85% while in the previous year 6.97% decrease by approximately 0.03%
as compared to last year while going through the growing phase. The Net revenue reflected as Rs.122. 475
millica (FY 2023: 100.734 million).The loss beforc income tax and minimum tax is Rs.23.754 (FY
2023:13.855) million. Your company reported net loss afier income tax and minimum tax is Rs.23.342
million. '

A brief summary shows the financial results with the corresponding figures are as follows:

200 2023
Note == === Rupees in "000" - --- -

Sales - Net

24 122475 100,734
Cost of sales 25 (139,688) _[106776)
Gross profit / {loss) (17,213) (7,573)
Administrative expenses 26 (10,333) (8,994)
Selling and distnbution costs 217 (623) {413)
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Operating profit / (loss) (13,169) {16,932)

Finance cost 28 (192) (261)

Other charpes 29 . (10,695)

Other income 0 4,607 14,083

Profit [ (Joss) before income

tax and minimum A (13,754) (13355

Minimum

Tax LY} (1,531) 1240

Laoss before income tax (25,285) (15,095)

Income Tax 1,943 2,095

Loss After income tax (23,342) (13,000}

Other comprebensive income

Ttems to be classified subsequently to statement of

profit or loss . -

Tvems that will not be

reclassified sabsequently to

statement of profit or Joss % &

Total comprehensive income [ (loss) for the year . (23241} (1.3.000)

Earnings / (loss) per share - basic and diluted 13 {0.75) {0.42)
RA VERNAN D FINANCIAL REP : MEWORK

The Board of Directors of your Company is dedicated lowards maintaining high standards of good corporate
governance, The Directors confirm compliance with the Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework of
the Sccurities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and the Code of Corporate Governance for the
following matters:

» The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, fairly present its state of
affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.
¥ Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company.
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¥ Appropriasle accounting policics have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgments.

# International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been duly followed in
preparation of financial statements.

¥ The system of internal controls is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored. The process of monitoring the internal controls will continue as an ongoing process
with the objective to further strengthen the controls and bring improvements in the system.

# There are no doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

% There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance, as given in

the Regulations of the Rule Book of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

A summary of key operating and financial data of the Company is annexed.

Information about taxes and levies is given in notes to the accounts.

¥y

ARD OF DIRECTO NDITS COMMITTEE

The Board, The governance at Metropolitan Steel Corporation Limited is a combination of processes
established and executed by the Board of Directors and the management of the Company, which is reflected
in the Company's structure as well as culture and how it is managed and led toward achieving its goals as
a whole. The corporate governance structure of the Company is based on statutory and regulatory
compliance requirements that are applicable to companies listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
and Company's Articles of Association complemented by several internal procedures. These procedures
include a risk assessment and control system, as well as a system of assurance on compliance with
applicable laws, regulations and the Company”s Code of Conduct. The Board of Directors of your Company
is highly engaged in maintaining long-term and sustainable value creation founded on durable ideologics
of governance. The Board comprises of two Non-Executive Directors and two Executive Director,

During the year, Four (4) meetings of the Board of Directors were held. All the meetings were held in
Pakistan, The attendance by each director in the meetings is as follows:

Name of Directors Number of Meetings attended
Mr. Mehmood Ali Mehlri

Mr. Muhammad Umar Mehkari
Mrs. Sara Mehmood Mehkni

Mr. Irshad Ali Pitafi

Mrs. Saba Mehkari Farooqui
Mrs. Uzma Mehmood Ali Mchkri
Mrs. Sofia Mehkari

e e e B o e b

RDS'S AUDIT COMMITT

The Board's Audit Committee (BAC) monitors the Company's systems of internal controls and nisk
management process periodically, assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities primarily in
reviewing regulatory compliance risks and reporting financial and non-financial information o
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shareholders. The BAC reviews and challenges, where necessary, the actions and judgments of
management. The BAC has the autonomy to call for information from management and to consult directly
with the external auditors or advisors as considered appropriate. Afier each meeting, the Chairman of the
BAC reports to the Board, During the year, five (5) meetings of the BAC were held. All the meetings were
held in Pakistan. The attendance by each director in the BAC meetings is as follows:

Name of directors Number of meetings attended
Mrs. Sofia Mehkari ( Chairman) 4
Mr. Mehmood Ali Mehkri 4
Mrs. Saba Mehkari Farooqui 4
TMAN RE A h MMITTEE

The purpose of the Human Resources & Remuncration Committee (HR&R) is to assist the Board in
fulfilling its oversight responsibilities in the field of Human Resources, their development, succession
planning and compensation and to perform all such responsibilities as are assigned to the HR&R Committec
by the Act and the Code of Corporate Governance Regulations. During the year, two (2) meeting of the
TRER Comminee was held. The meetings was held in Pakistan. The Head of 1IR. attended the HR&R
Committee meeting by invitation. The attendance by each Director in the HR&R Commities mecting is as
follows:

Name of direcfors Number of meetings attended
Mr. Irshad Ali Pitafi 1
Mr. Muhammad Umar Mebkari |
Mrs. Saba Mehkari Farooqui |
1

Mr. Mehmood Ali Mchkn

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE, EVALUATION OF BOD's AND COMMITTEES OF BOD's

The Company ensures to evolve and follow the corporate governance guidelines and best practices sincerely
to not just boost long term shareholders valoe but also to respect minority shareholder’s rights. The
Company considers it as inherent responsibility to disclose timely and accurate information regarding fi-
nancial performance as well as the leadership and governance of the Company. A report on annual
performance evaluation of Board of Directors and its Committees is pant of Chairman's Review which is
annexed in this annual report.

FEMALE DIRECTORS

The Company is committed to promote a gender diversity culture in the workplace and provide equal
opportunitics for all, based on menit and suitability. Female Directors represent 43% of the composition of
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Bnqﬂﬂfmm of the Cﬁml-'rﬂﬂ)' By having female directors on Board, the Company also complies with
section 154 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Code of Carporate Governance Regulations, 2019. The Board
and management of the Company encourage females to join the organization.

i R'S RE TION

Thn'l‘Hr'ﬂ%lﬂ'ﬂt of Directors has not formed a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of
directors in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and Code of Corporate Governance.

DIRECTOR’® INING

The onentation courses for Directors will be arranged by the Board, as and when needed, to apprise them
of their duties and responsibilities as envisaged in the Companies Act, 2017 and the Code of Corperate
Governance. The Company ensures that Directors are provided with appropriate briefing and crientation
material 1o enable them to get first-hand knowledge on the operations of the Company. The Directors will
acquire the required directors’ training within the time specified in the code of corporate governance.

EXTERNAL/STATUTORY ORS

The present auditors, Reanda Haroon Zakoria & Company, Chartered Accountants are retiring at the
conclusion of the annual general meeting to be held on 25 October 2024 and offer themselves for re-
appointment. The Board, upon recommendations of the Audit Committee, has endorsed the re-appointment
to Reanda Haroon Zakaria & Company, Chartered Accountants as statutory auditors of the Company for
the year ending 30 June 2025.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The Pattern of shareholdings as of 30 June 2024 is annexed with this annual report.

MODIFICATION IN THE AUDITOR'S REPORT

The External Auditors of the Company have provided modified opinion on the state and affairs of the
Company and the same is enclosed in this annual report. With respect to the modifications in the auditor’s
Tepor, our response is as follows:

s The auditors have qualified trade debts, unclaimed dividends, Stores spare and loose tools, lease
linbilities and markup accrued on lease liabilities amounting to Rs. 19.55 million, Rs. 1.27
million, Rs;13.01 million ,Rs. 21.22 million and Rs. 3.74 million respectively due to
unavailability of records and being old in nature. The management of the Company is pursuing
these records and hoping that these qualifications will not occur in next year,

23 ©
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» As regards to non-compliances mentioned In the review report on statement of compliance, the
management of the Company is pursuing quulified persons to hired as chief finuncial officer,
head of internal undit, and Independent Director.

» As negards the existence of materal uncertainty relating to golng concern, the management of
the Company is of the view that the Company is a going concern and has prepared the financial
statements on going concem assumption based on the following rensons:

2) The Company maintained its current status quo while many other companics shut their
operation, Further, the Company sales volume during the current year has been increased
as compared to previous year which gives hope for the future profitability of the company.

b) Morcover, the company gets new customer which will vliimately increase our sales and
make our company progress better and more profitable.

¢) Moreover, the Company has installed solar setup to ease its operations and curtail its energy
cost that gives Company's competitive price edge over its competitors and the management
is of the view that the Company will generate sufficient revenues in the subsequent years
that will be used to further enhance the operation of the company.

BUSINESS CONTINUITY PLAN

The Company's comprehensive Business Continuity Plan (BCP) is in place which includes activities
required to keep the organization running without interruption of normal operations during a period of
disasier,

THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors of the Company is committed to the principles of good Corporate Governance. The
corporate  governance practice of the Company is bascd on statutory and regulatory compliance
requirements that are applicable to companies listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and
Company’s Articles of Association complemented by several internal procedures. The Board is responsible
for governing the organization by setting strategics and objectives of the Company. The management 15
required to adopt and formulate policies and guidelines for achieving the said goals and objectives.

CODE OF U

The general Code of Conduct of the Company defines what we stand for and belicve in, documenting the
uncompromisingly high ethical standards our Company has upheld since iis foundation. Swong business
ethics forms the basis for all of our relationships with employees, customers, competitors, suppliers and
colleagues. It is a fundamental policy of the Company to conduct its business with honesty, integrity and
in accordance with the highest ethical and legal standards.
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA

Operating and financial data and key ratios of the Company for the last six years are annexed to this annual
report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board expresses its gratitode to all the valued stakeholders including respected sharcholders, valued
customers, financial institutions and suppliers for their confidence, sincerity and support. The Board would
alzo like to thank the management and employees for their sincere contribution and appreciable efforts in
driving the Company on the path of high sustainability and growth,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Muhammad Umar Mehkari
Chiel Executive Officer

September 25,2024
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CHAIRMAN'’S REVIEW

Dear Shareholders, It is my pleasure to present the annual audited financial statements and my
review on the performance of your Company for the outgoing financial year June 30, 2024 which
posed historic challenges for the global and local economy.

Due to overall global slowdown and persistent inflation worldwide and also within Pakistan has
eroded a lot of demand hence it is having an impact on our company performance.

Such challenging times are often an opportunity for re-birth. The Board of Directors, management
and employees of your Company are committed to growth despite volatility in local and global
economies over the years and are tirelessly executing strategies that have enabled your Company
to produce high quality products. Increasing market share will continue to be a key milestone that
the management strives towards, regardless of macro-economic imbalances. [ am very hopeful
that demand for High carbon steel and mild steel wires will increase in the upcoming future.

The overall performance of the Board, its members and sub-committees has been assessed as
‘Satisfactory’. As the Chairman of the Board, I would like to extend my gratitude to all Beard
Members for their valuable participation, support and continued guidance. I would also like to
thank all Shareholders for their extra-ordinary efforis, support and confidence.

o

Mehmood All Mehkrl
Chalrman

September 25,2024
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES

(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019 (THE REGULATIONS)

Name of Company:  Metropolitan Steel Corporation Limited
Year ended: June 30,2024

| Metropalitan Steel Carporation Limited (the Company) has complied with the requirements of the
Repulations in the following manner:

' 1.  The total number of Directors are seven as per the following:

a. Male: 3
b. Female: 4

2. The composition of the Board of Directors (the Board) is as follows:

Category Names
Non-Execcutive Directors | Mr. Mehmood Ali Mebkn
[ Mrs. Uzma Mchmood Ali Mebli

Mrs. Sofia Mehkari
Independent Director Mr.Irshad Al Pitafi
Executive Directors Mr. Muhammad Umar Mehkan

Mrs. Saba Mehkari Farooqui

Mre_ Sara Mehmood Mehkri

Female Directors | Mrs. Sara Mehmood Mehkn
Mrs. Saba Mehkari F i

| Mrs. Uzma Mehmood Ali Mehkni
Mrs. Sofia Mehkari

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a Director on more than seven listed
companies, including this Company;

4. The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policics and procedures;

5.  The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that cpmglttc rmnrd of particulars of the
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant maters have been
taken by the Board / sharcholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these

Regulations;
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10.

11.

12

13.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chalrman and, in his absence, by a director
clected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of mecting of Board;

The Board docs not have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of Directors
in accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

The Board has not arranged any Directors® Training program for its Dircctors, The Dircctors will be
trained in the upcoming period. All the Directors on the Board are fully conversant with their duties
and responsibilitics.

The CFO has resigned in the financial year June 30, 2016 and his successor has not been appointed
till the issuance of these financial statements.

The financial statements were duly endorsed by the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) before approval
of the Board;

The Board had formed committees comprising of members given below:

a. Aundit Committee

Sr.# Name Designation
i Mrs. Sofia Mehkari Chairman
ii  Mrs. Saba Mehkari Farcoqui Member
ii  Mr. Mchmood Al Mechkn Member

b. HR Remunerati ittes

Sr.# Name Designation
ii  Mr. Mehmood Ali Mehkni Member
i Mrs. Saba Mehkari Farooqui Member
iv  Mr. Muhammad Umar Mchkari Member

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented, and advised to
the committees for compliance;
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14.

15.

16.

13,

19.

The frequency of mectings of the commitiees were as per following:

Commitiee Frequency af Meetings

a) Board of Directors Mecting Quarterly
b) HR and Remuneration Committee  Annually
¢) Audit Committce Cuarterly

The Board is in the process of establishing an internal audit function and therefore, no Head of
Internal Audit has been appointed till the year end;

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAF) and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their
partners are in compliance with [nternational Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code
of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the
pariners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and
non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, company secretary or director of the
company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement
and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 7, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been
complied with; and

Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 7, 32, 33 and 36 are
below:

Sr.
No Reguintio

lanatio
n No. s g

Regulation No.

There are many areas under this regulation that
required to be addressed by Board and
corrective actions will be taken during next
year.

Responsibilites of
the Board and its
members o

Role of the Board
10A and its members to
02 address
Sustainability Risks
and Opportunities

01 10

The requirements introduced recently by SECP
through notification dated June 12, 2024, will
be complied with in due course.

The board does not have a formal policy and

formal policy for
remuneration of
individual directors

transparent procedures for the remuneration of
directors as required by Regulation 16 of the
Regulations.

Directors’ Training

Program and female

One independent director has attended the
Directors’ Training Program. The Board has

®
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e

o -

planned 1o complete the director’s training
program by the end of June 30, 2025 and
introduce training program for its head of
department. _

The Board has planned to appoint a qualified
chief financial officer as required by regulation
number 20 and 22 of these regulations.

The Board has planned to appoint a qualified
Chief internal auditor as required by regulation
number 23 of these regulations.

Since the Company has not yet appointed any
chief financial officer till the issuance of these
financial statements therefore these financial
statements along with other issued quarterly
financial statements were authonzed by the
chief executive officer only.

The board is in process of forming the
committee under regulations 29 & 30

The Board has planned to setup an internal
audit function in the upcoming financial year as
required by regulation number 31 of these
regulations.

executive & head of
department Training
Program
05 20 & 22 | chief financial
officer
Qualification of
06 2 |iemal auditor
Financial statement
25 endorsed by chief
07 financial officer and
chief executive
officer
og | 29430 | Board sub
commitiees
Composition  of
09 a1 internal audit
function
On Behalf of the Board,
MEHMOOD ALI MEHKARI
Chairman
Dated: September 25,2024
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P. Key Financial & Operating Data

This has been summarived for the following seven years for the assessment of eperating and financial resulis

FOR PROFIT AND LOSS

Juirr=2d _._.E_.E _ Jun=17 _...zn_.hu_ Jun-20 _ Jan-I7 _ Jun-18 _

- RIUFEER ‘pag”

[Saler Rvemmwe 122478 9,200 _ TTTRETE T 37,99
Cost af Sales [ivoanRy| 106776 118,384 B 167 46,253
firmes ProfiefLon) (17,213 (1.573) (rssml 11504 (18,854
Dther Income _ 4807 14,083 26,140 1,859 1,187
TOTAL (12.606) 6510 2490 | 14,363 (15,66
(Eiperaniog § semees 5 (9,40 o5 (a.6e8) 05.0%4)
peraiing Frofiefl wog _ 1,403 277 (20,760}
Financial Expenses [LLL] _{56) Ll
TOTAL 1,336 8,661 {20.857)]
[Chiher charper (BLIB[  (7.58m) - - (24,738
Prefit dost befare faxation {T.54E) 1O [ROASTY (18.513) 0,
FHwaemd = - - - =
Tavadiam 32y T4 4,140 (180} 2503
N prafit Lo for the pear after loTation (TR ETH) | BA6 (1&TIT)E TR 24 (IE912H
Avcuwentaied profisfocces braugit forvward piazn| (10,086 A5 14, 120 29,118
Adfwtmrwey I 4912 4,730 5,360 T4
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
METROPOLITAN STEEL CORPORATION LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qwalified Oplnion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Metropolitan Steel Corporation
Limited (the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June
2024, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
sialements, Including a malerial accounting policy information and other explanatory
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to
the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit except for
the matters stated in the Basls for Qualified Opinton section of our report,

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basls for Qualified
Opinion section of our report, and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the staiement of changes in equity and the stalement of cash
Mows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2024 and of the loss and other comprehensive loss,
the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We were unable lo substantiate stores and spares, trade debts, unclaimed dividends, lease
liabilities & its movement, and markup accrued on lease liabilities, amounting to Rs. 13.01
million, Rs. 19.55 million, Rs. 1.27 million, Rs. 21.22 million, and Rs. 3.74 million.
respectively due to non-availability of records and being old in nature. Consequently, we were
unable 1o determine whether any adjustments to these amounts were necessary.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Audlior’s Responsibiliiles for the Audit of the Financial Siatemenis section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountanis’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopled by the Instinste of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
oblained is sufficient and sppropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Reanda Haroon Zakaria Aamir Salman Rizwan & Company
Chartered Accountants

Sulle Hos. M1-M4 & T09-710, Progressive Plaza, Baaumont Fioad, Karachi - 75530, Pasistan
Tol: +02 (21) 3567 4T41-44 | Fax: #52 (21) 3567 4745 | Email: inloBhzasrihi pk | www.hzats pi

Oihver olfices ol
Lahone and Iplamabad
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Maierlal Uncertainiy relatlng to Golng Carcern

We draw atientlon to Note 1.3 to the accompanying fnancial siatements, which indicates that
the Company has incurred gross loss of Rs. 17.21 (2023; Ra. 7.57) million and has Incurred
after tax loss amounting to Rs. 23.34 (2023: Rs. 13.00) million and its sceumulated loszes stood
ol Rs. 105.51 (2023; Ra. 86.93) million. These conditlons along with other matiers mentioned
in note 1.3, indicate the existence of material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a golng concern, the company has discussed the reasons for
preparing these financial statements on a going concern basis. Our opinicn is not modified in
respect of this matter,

Emphasis of Matiers

We draw attention to the fact that the accompanying financlal statements are not authenticated
by the Chief Financlal Officer as required by the Companies Act, 2017 because the same was
not appointed till the date of authorization of the accompanying financlal statements.

Our opinion s not modified in respect of the above matter,
Key Audit Matiers

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matiers were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In addition 1o the matters described in the Basls for Quallfled Opinion seclion and Materlal
Uncertalnty relaling to Golng Concern section we have determined the matter described below
to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report

Following Is the Key audit matter:

Key audit maiter Heow the matter was addressed In
J oir andit

Valuatlon of steck In irade

As disclosed in note 7 to the Our nudit procedures to assess the valuation of
financial stalemenls, stock-in- stock-in-trade amongst others include the
trade amounts to Rs. 48.79 [following:

million. The stock is measured at o \4ined an understanding of controls over
lower of weighted average cost purchases and valuation of stock-in-trade and
and net realizable value. There is tested, on a sample basis, their design,

an element of judgement involved oo oereniation and operating effectiveness;
in determining an appropriate
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How the matier was addressed in

Key andit matter our audid
costing basis and assessing its » Performed observation of inventory counts
valuation. and physical inspection of the stock held at the

premises of the Company;

Given the significance of stock-in- » Asscssed net realizable value (NRV) by
trade to the financial performance  comparing management's estimation with the
of the Company and the level of  selling prices achieved subsequent to the
judgements and estimate involved,  reporting period; and

we have identified valuation of _
stock-in-trade a3 a key audit
matter.

Assessed the adequacy and approprialeness of
the disclosures for compliances with the
requirements of applicable financial reporting
framework.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The Other Information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 1o be
malerially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that thers isa
material misstatement of this Other Information, we ars required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

20




;E REANDA

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemenis as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan
will always detect a material misstatement when il exists. Misstatements can asise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulling from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of Eﬂnumi:l-g policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company”s ability to
continue as a going concem. If we conclude thai a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statemenis or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future evenis or condilions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem,

* Evaluale the overall presentation, siructure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial stalements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters thal may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards,

From the malters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare

circumslances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Regquirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) except for the possible effects of matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Company as
required by the Companies Act, 2017 (X1X of 2017);

b)  except for the possible effects of matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion

section of our report, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss

_ and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of

cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account;

¢}  invesimenits made, expenditures incurred and guarantees extended during the year were
for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) nozakat was deductible al source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of
1980).

The engagement pariner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Muhammad Farooq.

Ve oo Zhet e sl lofie

Chartered Accountanis Dated: September 27, 2024

UDIN: AR202410127TzRIVNvFM

@ __
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
METROPOLITAN STEEL CORPORATION LIMITED

Review Report on Statement of Compliance Contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporare Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of
Directors of Metropolitan Steel Corporation Limited, ("the Company™) for the year ended
June 30, 2024 in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the
status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does
not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents
prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of

the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective

audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ stalement on

internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such
- internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Commitiee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committes, place before the Board of Directors for their review
and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance
of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board
of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee,

Following instances of non-compliance with respect to regulations were observed which have
not been stated in the Statement of Compliance:

g) There is only one independent Director on the Board and professional indemnity insurance
cover for independent Director on the Board as required under section 6(1) of the
Regulations,

Reanda Haroon Zakarla Aamir Salman Rizwan & Company
Chartered Accountants

Suite Mos. M1-Md & 709-T10, Prograssive Plaza, Beauman! Agad, Kamchd - TEE30, Pakistan
Tal: 82 (21) ASET 474144 | Fax: +02 (21) 3567 4745 | Emall: nfo@he asrkhi.pk | waw hEasr ok

Cither oflices at:
Lahare and istamabad
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M There are thiee executive Directors on the Board which exceed the one third of the total
Roand members as required under section 8(1) of the Regulations.

&) There is no formal code of conduet or code of ethics polley as required under clause 10(3)
(i of the Regulations,

@) There are no adequate systems a grievance arising from unethical practices s required
under clause 10(3)(ii{) of the Regulations.

¢) There is no system of sound internal control established as required under clause 10(3) (iv)
of the Regulations

N The Board of Directors does not maintain a complete record of particulars of significant
policies along with their date of approval and updating as required under 10(4) of the
Regulations.

#) Qualification of Company secretary is not in compliance with the criteria specified under
section 24 of the Regulations.

h) Audit committee comprises of two non-executive directors and does not include any
independent Director as required under 27(1)(i) of the Regulations. Further, the Company
has’ not complied with requirements of 27(1) (ii) and (iii), 27(2) and 27(5) of the
Regulations.

i) HR and Remuneration committee does not constitute the majority of non-executive
directors as required under 28 (1) of the Regulations. Further, we have not been provided
with the evidence of HR. and Remuneration committee meeting held during the year

J) The website is not in operation which leads to non-disclosure of significant policies as
required under 35 of the Regulations.

Based on our review, excepl for the above instances of non-compliances, nothing has come to
our atiention which causes us to believe that the ‘Statement of Compliance’ does not
appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices
contzined in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the
Regulations as reflected in the Statement of Compliance:
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f:: REE;:“““ Description

01 10 Responsibilities of the Board and its members

Q 10A Role of the Board and its members to address Sustainability Risks and
Opportunities

03 16 Formal policy for remuneration of individual directors

0 19 Directors’ Training Program and female executive & head of department
Training Program

05 | 20&22 | Appointment of Chief Financial Officer

06 23 Appointment of internal auditor

07 25 Financial statement endorsed by chief financial officer and chief
executive officer

08 29 &30 | Board sub-commitiees

09 31 Composition of internal audit function

n. Enk:nrn M%ﬁm’m & Eumpnn:; I’lact: Karachi
Chartered Accountants Dated: September 27, 2024

UDIN: CR202410127eZX3UzBhC
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METROPOLITAN STEEL CORPORATION LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 10, 2024
204 2023
ASSETS Nove === Rupees n 000" - - - -
Noa-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 T66,044 767,621
Right-of-use assets 4.1 115 136
Long-term deposits § 3 1,209
763378 770,985
Curreat Assels
Stores, spare parts and loose tools [ 13,007 13,007
Siock-in-trade T 48,792 60,057
Trade debis ] 2811 29343
Claims recoverable 0 i a
Other recetvables 10 230 230
Short lerm investments 11 13,014 18,014
Short term deposils 12 - 2923
Tax refends due from govermnment 13 13,758 11,653
Interest reczivable 230 ™
Cash and bank balances 14 343 31,753
120,683 155,059
Tatal Assets 890,061 SI0.045
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital and Reserves
Autborized Capital
50,000,000 (2023: 50,000,000) Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 500,000 $00.000
Tssued, sabseribed and paid-up capital 15 309,776 209,776
Capital Reserves .
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 16 £29,952 534,733
Reveane Reserves
General reserve H,!HJ 30,500
Accamulated losses {105.512) {86.928)
D12} 6,426
314,746 233,088
Mos-Curreni Linbilities
Deferred liabilities 17 27821 29,764
Current Liabilitics
Trade and other payables 13 17,667 33,538
Markup accrued 19 3,745 31,745
Short Lerm borrowings 20 3,587 415
Unclaimed dividends 21 1273 1:,.12::73
Dverdus ion of lease liabilities 22 11,222 i
ol P d7,454 62,193
Cantlogeocies and Commiiment pix) B
Total Equity and Liabilities 890,061

The annexed notes from | to 45 forn an Integral part of these financlal statements.

ve Officer

920043
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MSC METROPOLITAN STEEL CORPORATION LIMITED

METROPOLITAN STEEL CORPORATION LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPERHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023
Note == Rupeesin "000"-«---

Revenue 24 122,475 99,201
Cost of sales 23 (139,688) {106,776)
Gross loss (17,213) (7.573)
Administrative expenses 26 (10333) {9:237)
Selling and distribution costs 27 {(623) (413)

(10,956) (9,650)
Operating loss (28,165) (17.223)
Finance cost 28 (192) (261)
Other charges 9 - (10,434)
Orther income 30 4,607 14,023
Loss before income tax and minimum tax {23,754) (13,355)
Minimum tax 3l {1,531) (1,240
Laoss befare income tax (25,285) (15,095)
Income Tax EE 1,943 2,095
Lass afier income taxation (23.341) {13,000)

Otber comprehensive income for the year

(2) ltems to be classified subsequently to the stalement of profit or loss - a
(b) ltemns that will not be reclassified subsequently to the statement of profit

or loss
Total comprehensive loss for the year (23.342) {13,000
Loss per share - basic and diluted (Rupees) 33 {II-‘I'EL - {ﬂ.ﬂl

The annexed noles from 1 to 45 form an inlegral pan of these finencial statements.

Eer Vs

Gtz Executive Officer -
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METROPOLITAN STEEL CORPORATION LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

;'-"H"'z Revenue Reserves
Share Revalwarion
surplus on G " Tatal
L property, reserve  CMapproperisied
plant and loss
equipment
e g’fﬂ!iﬂ"ﬂ'#i---------.------
Balance as at June 30, 2022 305,776 519,745 30,500 (78,933) 431,083
Total Comprebensive income for the year
Loss for the year - . - [u.u-:lml ilJ.ﬂW]l
Orher eomprehensive income - - - . -
- - . (13,000)  (13,000)
Transfer from revaluation surplus ca
property, plant and equipment to
erapproprialed profit on sccount of
incremnental depreciation - el (note
16) . (5,007) - 5,007 -
Balance 23 at June 30, 2023 309,776 534,733 80,500 [86,026) 838,088

Total Compreheasive income for the year
Laoas for the year - - . (3242 (B3MD)

Orther comprehensive income - = = - -

- - = 324 @3
Transfer to unsporopriated profit on account
of disposal of investment - al fair value
through other eomprehensive incoeme = (4,756) - 4,756 =
Balanee 23 a1 Juse 30, 2024 309,776 519,982 50,500 (105,512) 814,746

The anncxed notes from | 10 45 form an integral part of thess Minancial satements.

S

Cﬁﬂﬁ&u Officer r
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METROPOLITAN STEEL CORPORATION LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023
Note - --- Rupees in 000" - ---
A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations after
. working capltal changes 34 3,269 8511
; Finance cost paid (152} [261)
Taxes paid - net {3,636) {3,941)
Net cash generated from operating activities {5£9) 5309
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure incurred (12,390} 5
Proceeds from disposal of vehicle - 1,500
Short term investments purchase during the year (69,600) =
Short term investments sold during the year 74,600 (10,000)
Interest received on savings accounts and TDR 4454 1,396
Met cash used in investing activities {2.936) (7,104)
¥
P C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Short term borrowings received during the year 3262 5,098
Short term borrowings repaid during the year {90} (4,683)
Net cash generated from fMnancing activities 3.172 415
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (313 {1.380)
Cash and cash equivalent ai the beginning of the year 3,753 5,133
Cash and cash equivalent al the end of the year kL 3,430 3,753
PR

The annexed notes from | 1o 45 form an integral pan of these financial statements.

G

Officer




MSC METROPOLITAN STEEL CORPORATION LIMITED

METROPOLITAN STEEL CORPORATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

i  LEGALSTATUS AND OPERATIONS

1.1 Mewoepolitan Steel Corporation Limited (the Company) was incorporated on Angust 24, 193F as a Public
Limited Company. The shares of the Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The Company
is & manufacturer of steel products such o torsteel, rdbbed bars, wire rods, bailing hoops, mild and high carbon
stoel wines, transmission towers and cold profiles.

1.2 The prographical locarion ond addresses of business unils ore o8 nnder:

Locating Address
Registered ollicos and Manulbcturing focility Landhi Industrial Arca, Ploa ® HE:172

L3 Dwring the year, the Company has incurred gross loss of Bz, 17.21 million (2023; Rs 7357 mllicn) and has
incorrod afler tax loss amounting to Bx. 2334 million (2023:; Rs. 13,00 million) and iz accumuled logses
stood at B, 105,51 million {2023: Rs, 86,93 million).

These conditions indicate the existence of matenal uncerwinty that may cost significant doube about the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern,

However, the management of the Company has prepared these financial statements on going concem basis dus
to the following reasons:

al The Company matotained its business and production activities due 1o competitive price edge and growth in
sales iz observed during the currenl year as sales volume increase by 20% as compared o last vear and
Met zales revenue increass by 23 .46% as compared 1o last year and current rato is positive and siable. The
client base is increased as company is selling its products to various projects, retailers and Companies. The
prices of Company's products are competitive and the management is of the view that the Company will
generate sufficient revenues and profits in the foresceoble future to offscts its sccumulated losses and
provide reasonable return to its sharcholders.

8) The Company has no bank lisbility and sponsors directors are commitied to support the compuny, in shape
of interest free loan, in case working capital requirement anscs.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
11  Seatement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accownting and reponting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting stundards applicable in Pakistan comprise of

. Internatiomal Financial Reporting Siandards (IFRS Standards) issued by the international Accounung
Standard Boards (TASH) as notilied under the Companies Act, 2017,

. Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Agt, 2017,

Where provisions and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS standards, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

22  Basls of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for:

. short term investments are steled at the fair values; and
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leaschald land, buildings on leaschold land, and plant & machinery which have been classificd under
property, plant & cquipment and arc stated ot revalued amounts,
23  Functional and preseniation chrreRcy

-

These financial statements are presunted in Pakistani Rupees which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency. All financial information presented in Pakistan Rupees has been rounded to the Rupee.,

24  Use af estimates and judgments

The preparation of financsial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use of
ccrtain critical accounting estimates. [t also requires management 10 exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are contimually evaluated and are based
on histonic experience and other factors, including cxpectation of future cvents that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
the estimales are revised and in any future period affected.

In the ProDass of applying the accounting polices, management hos made the following estimates and
Jjudgments which are significant to the financial statements:

a) Determining the residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipments (Note 3.1),
b) Impairment / adjustments of inventories and stores to their net realizable value (Mote 3.7 & 3.6),
¢} Recognition of taxation and deferred tax ( Note 3.13), and:

d) Impairment of nsscts (Note 3.3 £3.4.1.5).

25 Sewandards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards

251 Amendments io approved accownting standards and interpretations which became effective during the year
ended June 30, 2024;

There wene cenain amcodments to sccounting and reporting standards which became effective for the
Company for the current year. However, these are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant
impact on the Company's (inancial reporting and, therefore, hove not been disclosed in these [financial
statements.

3 %7 Siandards, interpretations and amendmrenis fo the ecisting standards that are net yet cffective and have nor
been early adopied by the company

Effective date fannual reporiing
periods beginning on or after)

1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Stalements (Ameodmenis January 1, 2024
regarding the classification of linbilities and debts with

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows (Amendments reganding Jorunry 1, 2024
supplicr finsnce armangements)

IFRS 16 Leases (Amendments 1o clarify how a seller-lesses January 1, 2024
subscquently measures sale and leaseback transactions)

IAS 21 Effcets of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates (Amendme January 1, 2025

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments (Amendments regarding disclosure January 1, 2026

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 1, 2026

IFR5 9 Financial Instruments (Amendments reganding the January 1, 2026

classification and measurement of Hnu;n‘il irﬁlmm:nls}




MSC METROPOLITAN STEEL CORPORATION LIMITED

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The principal accounting policies applied in the presentation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

31

Property, plant and equipment and depreclation

2.1.1 Owned assets

3.2

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses except for
Jeasehold land which is stated at revalued amount less impairement lossess and buildings on leasehold land,
and plant & machinery which are stated at revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Cost of property, plant and equipment comprises the acquisition cost and directly
attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition.

Depreciation is charged to income applying the reducing balance method, using the rates stated in note 4.1,
Depreciation is charged when the asset is put to use till the asset is disposed.

The assets' residual values, and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.
Maintenance and normal repairs are chargped to income as and when incurred. Major renewals and
improvemeénts are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount at the reporting date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of an asset
represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is charged 10

statement of profit or loss.

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment

Revaluation surplus is recorded in other comprehensive income and accumulated to the Revaluation surplus oo

property, plant and equipment in equity. However, to the extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same
asset previously recognized in profit or loss, the increase is recognized in statement of profit or loss. A
revaleation deficit is recognized in the statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it offsets an existing
surplus on the same assel recognized in the revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment.

An annusl transfer from the revaluation surplus on propenty, plant and equipment to unappropriated profit is
made for the difference between depreciation based on the revalued camrying amount of the asset and
depreciation on the asset’s original cost. Upon disposal, any surplus relating to the particular asset being sold is
transferred to unappropriated profit.

Impairment of non - financlal assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to dﬂcrm_mt
whether there is any indication of impairment. 1f such indication exists, the asset’s rncm'gmbh amount, being
higher of value of use and fair value less costs to sell, is estimated. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment
testing, assels that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
groups of assets. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its

recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
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14  Financial instramenis

3.4.1 Inivial Recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured ai cost which is the fair value of the consideration
given or received. These are subsequently measured at fair value, amortized cost as the case may be.

3.4.2 Classification of financial assets
The Company classifies il (inancial instramenis in the following calegories:

= al amortized cosl.
- ai fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI™), or
= at fwir value through profit and loss (“FYTPL™),

The Company determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition. The classification of
nstruments (other than equity instruments) is driven by the Company’s business model for managing the
financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics.

Financial asters at amortized cost

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amontized cost:

@) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and

) the conmractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets ar falr value through OC]
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCT:

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecling contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets and

B8} the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely pavments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

However, Company may make an irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular investments in equity
instruments that would otherwise be measured at fair value through profit or loss o present subsequent changes
in fair value 10 other comprehensive income,

Finoncial asseis ai folr valwe through P& L

A fMnancial asset is measured m fair value through P&L unless it is measured ot amortized or ot fair value
through OCL.

F.4.1.3 Finoncial Habilldes
The Company classifies ils inancial liakilities in the lollowing categones:

- ai fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), or
- at amortized cost.

Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost, unless they are required (o be measured at FVTPL (such as
instrumnenis held for trading or derivatives) or the Company has opled to measure them at FVTPL.
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3.4.1.4 Subsequent measurement

1

J.4.1.6

Finanelal assets af F¥TOCT

Elected investments in equity instruments at FYTOCI are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are measured ai fair volue, with pains or losses arising from changes in fair value

recognized in OCT,

lovestments in un-quoted equity instruments ol FVTOCT are initially recognized at foir value plus transaction
costs, Subsequently, they are measured at fair value. However, in limited circumstances, where there is
insufficient recent information is available or where there is wide range of possible fair value measurements,
{he cost may be an appropriate estimate of fair value,

Financial assets and Habilitles at amortized cost
Financial assets and liabilities at amonized cost are initially recognized at fair valoe plus or minus transaction
casts, and subsequently carried at amortized cost, and in the case of financial assets, less any impairment.

Financial assets and Habilides ot FYTPL

Financial assets and liabilities carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and transaction cosls are
expensed in the stalement of profit or loss and other compreheasive income, Realized and unrealized gains and
losses arising from chanpes in the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities held at FVTPL are included in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which they anse. Where
management has opted 1o recognize 2 financial liability at FVTPL, any changes associated with the Company’s
own credit nsk will be recognized in other comprehensive incomef(loss). Currently, there are no financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL.

Impairment of financial assets af amortized cost

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) on fnancial assets thal are
measured at amortized cost. Loss allowances are measured on the basis of life ume (ECLs) that result from all

possible defiult events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Lifetime ECL is only recognized if the credit risk at the reporting date has increased significantly relative 1o the
credit risk at initial recognition. Furiher, the Company considers the impact of forwand looking information
(such Company’s internal factors and economic environment of the country of customers) on ECLs. Credit
losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash fows due

the entity and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Provision against financial assets measured at asmortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of
the assels,

Derecognition

Financial assets :
The Company derecognizes financial assets only when the contractual rights 1o ¢?-!I:l Hu'-v? from the financial
assels expire or when it transfers the flinancial asscts and substantially all the associated risks and rewards of

ownership to another entily.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured al amortized cost, ihe qiﬂi::]tnu: between the assel’s camying
value and the sum of the eonsideration received and receivable is recognized in profit or Joss.
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In addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FYTOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Company has elected on initial
recognition to measure at FYTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to revenue reserve.

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognizes financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial habilities arc
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the camrying amount of the financial Lability

derecognized and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets wransferred or habilities
azsumed, is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

3.4.1.7 Offsetting of financial assets and financial Dabilities

Financizl assets and financial lisbilities are offset and the net amount is reporied in the financial statements
only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the Company intends either
10 setile on a net basis or to realize the assers and 1 sertle the liabilites simultanecusly.

5.5 Impairmeni of non-financial assets

The carmying amounts of the Company's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there s
any indication of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the assets recoverable amount is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Impairment losses are recognized as expense in
profit or loss account.

3.6 Stores, spare parts and loese tools

Swores and spares in hand are valued at lower of average cost and net realizable value. Items in transit are
valued a1 invoice value plus other expenses incurmed thereon.

A7 Stock-in-frade

These are valued at lower of cost and realisable value. Cost is determined as follows: -

Raw matenal : Average basis
Packing material : Average basis
Fuushed goods : Al average manufacturing cost
Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs necessarily
o be incurred in order to make the sale.
1.8 Trade debis

Trade Debts are recognized at invoice value less provision for uncollectible amounts. Provisions for doubtful
debts is based on management's assessment of customer balance outstanding and credit worthiness. Bad debts
are written off when there is no realistic prospects of the recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years
is used 1o base the calculation of expected credit loss (ECL).

&
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1.9 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past
events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setile
the obligation and a relioble estimate can be made of the amount of obligation,

110 Trode and other payables

Trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future
for goods and services received up to the year end, whether or not billed to the Company.

2 1F Leases

A contract is, or contoins a lease if the contract conveys & right to control the use of an identificd asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. The Company leases wchicles for its stall. The Company
rccognizes a right-of-use asset and lease linbility at the lease commencement date. The right-ol-use assct is
initially measured at cost, and subsequently at cost less any sccumulated depreciation and impairment losses if
any, ond adjusted for certain remessurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using
the reducing balance method. The estimated useful lives of azsets are determined on the same basis es tha for
owned assets. In addition, the dght-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any,

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the entity's incremental borrowing rute, The lease linbility is subsequently increased by the interest
cost on the lease liability and decreased by lease payments made. It is re-measured when there is a change in
future lease payments ansing from a change in an index or rate, a change in asscssment of whether extension
oplion is reasonably certain 10 be exercised or a termination option is reasonably cerain not to be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are presented in the same line itcms as it presents underlying assets of the same nature
thot i1l owns,

212 Cash and cosh equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of the cash
flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and with banks.

313 Taxation

I I3.1 Lewy

Tax charged under Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which is not based on taxable income or any amount paid /
payable in excess of the calculation based on taxable income or any minimum tax which is not adjustable
against future income tax liability is classified as levy in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as these levies fall under the scope of IFRIC 12/1AS 37,

1I13.2 Carremi
Prowvizion for taxation is based on provisions ol the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,

3.13.3 Deferred

Deferred tax is sccounted for using the statement of balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of asseis and lishilities in the fAnancial
statements and their tax base, The deferred tax asset is recongnised to the extent of probability that taxable
profits will be available against which these deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax is
calculated at the tax rates that are expecied to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is
settled
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1. 14 Revenuwe recognifion

- Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer, Revenue from
operations of the Company are recognized when the goods sre provided, and thereby the performunce
obligations are satisfied. The Company's contract performance obligations are fulfilled at the point in time
when the goods are dispatched to the customer. Invoices are generated and revenue is recognized at that
point in time, as the control has been transferred to the customers. Revenue is measured at fair value of the
consideration reccived or receivable, cacluding amount of sales tax. Revenue from Sale of goods are
reconded on dispatch of goods to customers.

= Pmfit on bank deposits are accounted for on an accrual basis,

= (ain on disposal of fixed assets i3 recognized on transfer of tithe to the buyer.

= Onher income is recognized on the occurrence of transaction,

- Dividend income is recorded when the dght to receive the dividend is established. Retumn on securities
other than shares is recognized on accraal basis.

113 Barrewingy

Bormowings / debt is recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. These are subsequently
measured at amortized cost and any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value i recognized in the statement of profit or loss over the pericd of borrowings / debt under the
effective interest method. Markup / profit on borrowings! debt is calculated using the effective interest method
and is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

1.16 Fereign currency framnslation

Monectary assets and liabilities in forcign curmencies ane translated in Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the reporting date. Non monctary assets and liabilities in forcign currencics are translated into Pak
Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the date of transactions. All exchange guins and losses ane taken to
the profit or loss account.

317 Proposed dividend and rransfer between reserves

Dividends declared and transfer between reserves, except appropriations which are required by the law, nudc
subsequent to the statement of financial position date are considered as non adjusting events and are recognized
in the financial statements in the year in which such dividends are declared or transfers between reserves ans
made.

3.18 Segment reporting . --

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business aclivities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the
Company's other components. The Company has only one reportable segment.

3.1% Earnings per share

The Compuny presents basic and diluted easmings per share (EPS) duta for its ordinary shores. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding or loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potentinl ordinary shares, if any

@
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3.20 Related party transactions

3.21

All transactions with related parties are carried out by the Company at arms' length basis, except loan from
directors which is interest free.

Change in Policy

During the year, the Institute of Chartered Accountant of Pakistan (ICAP) has withdrawn the Technical Release
27 "IAS 12, Income Taxes (Revised 2012)" and has issued a Guidance - “IAS 12 Application Guidance on
Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes". The said Guidance requires taxes paid under final tax
regime to be shown separately as a levy instead of showing it in current tax.

Accordingly, the impact has been incorporated in these financial statements retrospectively in accordance with
the requirement of Intemational Accounting Standard (TAS 8) - ‘Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting
Estimates and Errors”. There has been no effect on the statement of financial position and statement of cash
flows as a result of this change.

Had there been no change in accounting policy, taxation for the current year would have been higher and Loss
before faxation would have been lower by Rs. 1.531 million {June 30, 2023: Rs. 1.240 million). There is no
impact on the loss per share for the current and prior year due to the change.
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N Xn
Note -~ Rupees n 000" -
4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets 4l 16604 767621
76044 767611
————————
41 Operating fixed essets
—————————eaa———— . —
(wmed Right
Perdrnlars o Flani and : % : ehicles Total _mi_
MH" nackingry FUPment  frresand Vi Com puiers
leasehoid &y —_—
iend fitings Veide
Fear emdeed Jime 30, 2023
Opening mer hook volee 05600 131,78 154001 k7l 1 100 4 prad 264
Lexs: disposal
Cost | Revalaed amount E . e g Z - 535
Acoumulared depreczation . = 3 i " " {1.473)
. . = 3 : 3 il
Deprotiztion charged (6389)  (7.7%0) (49) 23} (20} (&) (14.359) (43)
Net bood velue ox &
June 30, 2023 L5650 1219 14630 7% 13 L] M 767,821 1%
Addition : 1439 _ 123%
Depreciation charped (260 [1315) (H9 {20 {18 m (13.96T) 31
Net book vedue a3 at
June 38, 2024 BL00 LB 13898 131 1 B .0 6604 125
At June 30, 2023
Cost / revahued amount 5600 1ETH 162106 380 1588 419 1,183 29106 3069
Asumulned deprecizain (13525) (1580d) (3,367} (346) (0x)  (L13) {145 290
Net ook woie 600 1519 146301 141 131 H 67,621 156
— t—— ——————— ¥ - - ]
At Jume 30, 034
Cost { revalued amoumt 55 18T4 IBLIN 1613 158 4 1,188 506 19
m]ﬂ:dﬂqmmm (1578 (@0 B (LR I T R B L (35462 (25
Net book value 45500 118539 138986 12317 11 ¥ N 6,04 15
Rate of depreciation % - 5% % 15% 15% 0% W 0%
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2024 2023
= === Rupees in "000" - - - -
4.1.1 The depreciation charge has been alfocaied as follows:
Cost of sales 13,819 14,263
Administrative expenses 153 157
Selling and distribution costs 17 17
13,999 14437
4.2 Pamiculars of immovable property (i.e. leasehold land and buildings thereon) in the name of the Company are
as follows:
- == e .
Yocull Total Area * Covered
fAcres) Area (Aeres)
Landhi Industrial Area, Plot # HE: 172 4.13 135

4.4

* This covered area includes mul story building.

Om June 21, 2021 the Company carried oot valuation of its leaschold land, buildings on leaschold land and
plant and machinery by an indspendent valuer, who has determined forced sale value of leasehold land,
buildings on leaschold land and plant and machinery amounting to Rs. 396.48 Million, Rs. 6958 million and
Rs. 121.13 million respectively. The fair values were determined with reference to market based evidence,
based on active market prices and relevant inquiries and information as considered necessary.

The camrymng amount of the assets as at the year end, if the assets had been camied at historical cost, would
have been as follows:

At June 30, 2024

Cost 11565 60,072 201,805 73,442

Accumulated depreciation . {14,832) (116,390) (131,222)
Net book value 11565 45,240 85,415 142,220
Ar June 30, 2023

Cost : 11,565 60,072 201,805 273,442

Accumulated depreciation . (12,451) (111,895) (124,346)
Net book value 11,565 41,621 £9.910 149,096
Rate of depreciation % L 5% 5%

e _———
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2024 2023
= === Rupees in "000" -« - .

5 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS

With CDC 50 50
With K-Electric 3.159 3,159
3,209 3.209

——mimm—y,

& STORES, SPARE PARTE AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores 18,481 18,481
Spare parts 25,384 25,384
Loose wols 286 286
44,151 44,131
Less: provision for slow moving items and cbsolescence . (31,144) (31, 144)
13.007 13,007 2

¥  STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw materials
- in hand 31,870 32,256
Finished goods 16,922 27,801
48,792 60.057

& TRADE DEETS

Considered good 4,146 5267
Considered dnuhtﬁﬂ 8.1 24.076 24076
28,222 29,343

81 This represents amount receivable in respect of ower plant amounting to Rs. 4.52 Million (2023: Rs. 4.52
Million) supplied to Multan Electric Power Company Limited bearing execution no 20/20 and Rs. 19.55
million (2023: Rs. 19.55 million) receivable from WAPDA bearing suit no 105872014, As per the legal
advisor in both of these matters there is no apparent threat of further litigation and the favourable outcome is
expected. Accordingly, the Company has not made any provision in respect of the amounts in these financial
stalements.

2024 2023
===~ Rupees in 000" - - - -
&2 The aging analysiv of frade recefvables Is as follows:
Upto | months : " : =
1 to 6 months = %
6 to 12 months 3,877 5267
More than 12 months 24,345 24,076
28,222 26,343
lama e ——
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2024 2023
==== Rupees in QM ==- -
9 CLAIMS RECOVERABLE

Considered good - 2

Considered doubtful 199,994 199,994
199,994 199 994

Less: provisian for doubtful debts (199,994) (199 9%4)

9.7 This represents amount recoverable in respect of excise duty paid by the Company on billets supplied by
Pakistan Swieel Mills Comoration (Private) Limited during the period commencing 1989-90 w 1991-92
pursuant to SRO 732(1)/89, which was challenged (Suil no. 745/1992) by the Company in the Honourahle
High Court of Sindh during 1992. The said swit was dismissed by the single Judge bench of Honourable High
Court of Sindh on June 01, 2016, The Company has made appeal (TICA/S0R2016) aganst the decision
before the Honourable [ligh Court of Sindh, which is pending till the issuance of these financial statements.
Legal advisor is of the view that the matter will be decided stnictly on mernits. However, based on prodence,
the Company has made a provision for the telal amount.

2024 2023
== == Rupees in 000" - - - -
$.2  Provision for doubgful debts

Opening 199,994 199,994

Add: provision made during the year A %
Closing 199.994 199.564

¢ OTHER RECEIVABLES
Considered good

Orther receivables 230 230

J0.7 This represents amount placed with brokerage house in respect of trading of shares.

2024 2023

w= == Rupees in P00 ===
11 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Al fair value - throwgh profit or loss
Shariah Compliant -
Units of mastual funds 14 14

Ar amortized cost
Shariak Compliani -
Term deposit receipts (TDR) il 13,000 18,000
12,014 18014

¥

J1.1 This includes a TDR of Rs, 8 million having muturity of | year camries markup ot the r.u-: of 15% (2023;
18%) per annum and is placed with the bank as margin against bank guarantee issued in favour of Sul

Southern Gas Company Limited and 8 TDR of Rs. § million having maturity of 1 year carries markup at the
rate of 17% (2023 | £%) per unnum.
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2024 2023
Node == == Rupees in 000" - = . .
12 SHORT TERM DEPOSITS
Depasits
- Margin against letter of credit g 22,521
= 22923
—
13 TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT
Income tax 13.1 13,758 ll,ﬁﬁ:'l_
131 Opening 11,653 8.902
Provision for the year {1,531) (1,190)
10,122 7.712
Prior year - 11
Income tax paid/deducted during the year 3,636 3930
Closing 13,758 11.653
e —
14 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash at bank
- In current account 145 3,631
= In savings account 14.1 3,285 122
3,430 3.753
522“ 3.753

I4.1 These carry markup at the rates ranging between 3% to 4% (2023: 2.5% to 8.75%) per annum. The deposits
are placed with bank under Islamic banking arrangements,

15 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2024 2023 2024 2023
Numiber af shares Nate == == Rupees in 000" = = = =

Ordimary shares af R, 10 each

6,134,773 6,134773  fully paid in cash 61,348 61348
23,040,700 23,040,700 for consideration other than cash 15,1 230,407 230,407
1,802,081 1,802 081 issued as bonus shares 18,021 18,021
0977554 30977554 309,776 309,776

135.] These shares were originally issued to National Bank of Pakistan {formerly National Development Financial
Corporation), United Bank Limited and Habib Bank Limited against amount payable by the Company.
Subsequently, Chairman of the Company purchased shares from these banks having face value amounting to
Es. 228 million.

@ _
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2024 2023
Note ==== Rupees in "000" - - - -
16 REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Balance as at 01 July, 564,502 571,554
Buildings on leaschold land and plant and machinery
Transferred 1o unappropriated profit in respect of

incremental depreciation - net of deferred tax (4,756) (5.007)
(6,699) (7,052)

Balance ax aif June 30, 557,803 564,502
Related deferred tax lability 16.1 {27.821) {(29,764)

HdlﬂlﬂﬂﬂjﬂJﬂﬂt-lﬂﬂfdfﬁfﬂm 16.2 & 16.3 530 553 534 718

ﬂ—“

161 Mavemeni in deferred rae liability

Balance as at 01 July 29,764 31,309
Transferred to unappropriated profit in
respect of incremental depreciztion (1,943) (2,0:435)
Balance as at June 30 27.821 20,764
D ———— ey

142 The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is a capital reserve as it is not available for
distribution to the shareholders of the Company in accordance with provisiens of the Companies Act, 2017

16.3 The kistory of revalnation carried out on property, plant and equipment is as follows:

Name of independent valuers Valuation basis Date of Rupees i

revaluation 009’ 4

M/s. Zafar Iqbal & Company Market value of assets June 21, 2021 227,291
Ms. Zafar Igbal & Company Market value of assets June 30, 2018 11910
M/s. Credit & Commerce Consultanis Market value of assets June 30, 2018 86,911
(Private) Limited

M/s. Igbal. A. Nanji & Company Market value of assets June 26, 2015 10,017
M/s. Saleh Saleem & Associates Market value of assets Jan 03, 2012 337,902
M/s. Igbal. A. Nanji & Company Market value of assets June 30, 2007 599,280
M/s. Ighal. A. Nanji & Company and Market value of assets June 30, 2004 254,084
M/s. Akbani & Jawed Associates

M/s. Igbal. A. Nanji & Company Replacement value of assets June 30, 2000 267,345
M/s. Zahid Zaheer & Associates Market value of assets June 30, 1990 240,037

(41)
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2034 2023
1 17 DEFERRED LIABILITIES Nole = e= Rupees in T - eae
Deferred tax hability 171 17,821 Hi?ﬁd
I7.1 Deferred tax liability
Deductible emporary differences
Provisions for stores, spare parts and loose iools (%,032) (9.032)
I Provisions for claims recoverable (57.598) (37.998)
Lushilities against assets subject to finance lease (6,154) (6,154)
Busmess losses (28,996) (8,565)
Unabsorbed tax depreciation (203,.587) {203,511)
{305,767) (235,260)
Taxable temporary differences
Accelerated tax depreciation 33200 34,152
Deferred tax asset (272,565) (251,108)
Deeferred tax asset not recognized 17.1.1 171565 251,108
Taxoble temporary differences
Revaluation surphis o property, plant and equipment 16.1 17,511 29,764
1 I7.1.1 Deferred tax asset as at June 30, 2024 to the extent of Rs. 272.565 (June 30, 2023: Rs. 251.108) Million has
not been recognized based on prodence as the Company is uncertain o generate sufficient taxable profits,
within tme frame stipulated in Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, against which such benefiis can be utilized .
2024 2023
I8 TRADE AND (?THER PAYABLES Note ===~ Rupees in 000" - - - -
Bills payable - 12766
Trade crediors 84 a7s
WHT payable 73 Loz
Accrued liabilities 18.1 17277 11,392
i Advances from customers ; =0
Payable to EOBI . 122 e i -
Others 233 233

17.667 35,538

I&! Includes remeration of Chief Executive Officer amounting to Ra, 6.43 million (2023: Rs. 9.74 million).

20 023
I82 Payable to EOB] Note - === Rupees in 000" - == -
Opening balance 2 6,480
Less: payments made oll date . 1821 . (2,149)-
Less: write back - {4,331)
Closing balance i L
e

78.2.1 High coun of Sindh vide order dated 25 Masch, 2016 issued demand natice 1o the Company for the payment
of the dues amcunting to Rs. 648 million pertaining to EOBI in this regard Company has made the payment
amounting to Rs. 2.15 million and balance amount was under negotiation for final senlement. In the year
2023, the company has reversed the EOBI lisbility on account of settlement done with the EOBI department.
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2024

§UPACCRUED Note 2023
L MAR grrangement = === Rupees in pyge

Interest : e

- O lease liabilities .

745
B 1743
sHORT TERM BORRO WINGS i

M shariah Compliant -

From director - unsecured 20.1 & 202 S

P4

B AL

L —_———— ._____{_f_!-
This represents unsecured and interest free loan oblained from g
o capital requirements and is payable on demand. m cltector of the Company to meet the working

20.1.1 The maximum amount due o director at the end of any month is Rs. 3.59 million (2023: Rs, 3.35 million)

2024 2013
==un Rupees in 000"« oa- .
203 Detail of short term borrowings
Opening 415 ’
Add: receipt during the year e 5,008
Less: Repayments during the vear 90 4,633}
Closing 3287 415
- ET
ENCLAIMED DIVIDENDS

In pursuant of the provisions of the Companies (Amendment) Ordinance, 2020 the Company has to transfer all
unclsimed or unpaid dividends to a separate profit bearing account and any profit carned will be used for Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) activities. The deposits in the unpaid dividend account will only heus:dfn.: pryment
w2 claimant. The Company is in a process of opening a separate bank account and m order to comply with the sad
provision.

oM 2023
OVERDUE PORTION OF LEASE LIABILITIES Note - === Rupees in 000"~~~ ~-
Jmiﬁmd;rmgamtm s ;199
Over due portion of lease liabilities 0.l R 17>

ing rakes
Jease agreements. Financing B
er finance F a3

221 Lease liabilities represent liabilities for vehicles acquired und per anmum have been

ranging from 14,00% to 22.00% (2023: 14.00% to 22.00%)

Ei':fq‘;l
s ts will become dug are 35
The amounts of the future lease paymenis and the periods in which these paymes
rﬂllﬂ-p.'g_t ol
2024 il
Financlal Mimimm — pawes  prineipal
Minimim ckiaraes ey puie allocated 0
iaze allocated to paymenis funure periodt
payments fmmpn'ﬂ'ﬂﬂ A
_ . Rupees in ve0 - -
O L ?‘].:22_-
21,222
232
Uptoone year 21,22 - ko
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23 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENT

231 Contingencies

2LLI The contingencies to which the Company is exposed are discussed in note ¥ and note 9 1o these financial

statements.

21.1.2 Guarantee in favour of Sui Sothern Gas Company Limited issued by the Bank on behalf of the Company

amounted to Fs. 8,00 million (2023: Rs. E.00 million).
212 Commiments

2321 There is no commitmnet as at June 30, 2024,

Node
24 REVENUE

Sale of goods
Less: sales tx

Service income
Less: sales tax

25 COSTOF SALES Note

Raw materials consimmed 5.1
Salaries, wages and other benefis
Roll, plastic, acid, pullies and chemeal
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation 411
Postage, telegrams and telephone
Printing and stationery
Iosurance
Cost of poods manufactured
Finished goods
Opening siock
Closing stock

251 Raw materials consumed

ﬂpﬁing sinck
Purchases 2311

Closing stock

25.1.1 Represents raw material imponed for production of stee] wires.

2024 2023
- == Rupees in "000" - - - -
147,224 117,847
(28,105) (18,244)
119,119 99,203
3559 -
(503) -
3356 -
122475 e I
2024 2023
- === Rupees in 000" - - - - -
113,348 88,739
3018 4,107
1,218 3,262
10,725 9235
(11 679
13,829 14,263
448 135
92 43
106 161
143,757 120,675
27,801 13,903
(31,870) {27,501)

4,069) (13,598)

139,688 106,776
‘_-

32,256 38,761
98,014 52,284
130,270 121,045
(16,922) [31.3-56'}

38789
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2034 2023
Note = === Rupeesin 000" eueen
26 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and other benefits 2934 3262
Chief executive officer and directons’ remuneraticn 36 4,057 3,048
Depreciation £.1.] 153 157
Unilibies 115 -
Traveling and conveyance 86 %6
Entertainmenl 3 41
D{l‘lﬁﬂ'ﬁ 26.1 k. iy 0
Advertisernent L) )
Auditors’ remuneration 262 B35 635
Legal and professional charges 1,056 1,084
Medical 58 -
Fees and subseription 263 662 48
Miscellanetus 85 70
10,333 9,234
=6.] None of the directors or their spouses have any interest in the donees” fund.
2632 Auditors’ remuneration
Annual andit 410 410
Eeview of code of corporate povernance 65 (]
Half yearly review 120 120
Onzt of pocket 40 40
635 'E:'IS_I
263 This includes listing fee paid to Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited amounting to Rs. Nil (2023: Rs. 0.46
millbien).
2024 2023
Noie = === Rupees in 000" < ===
27 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS
Depreciation 411 17 17
Forsarding and tracspontation £06 356
28 FINANCE COST
LC Charges 128 5
Bank charges and commussion 64 164

29 OTHER CHARGES
Others 29,1 - 10,454
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1024 021
10 OTHER INCOME Note === Rupees in 000" - -« -
Incame fram financial avefe
Shariah Compliant «
Markup on savings sccount 402 172
Markup on TDR 4,103 1232
4,605 |0
Income from non - financial assety
Gain on disposal of right of use asset x | 557
Purchase discoant 1 4
Lishihines writen back 18.2 & 30.1 = I 1,098
2 12,679

i s

30.] Inthe year 2023, this amount includes the reversal of EOBI of Rs. 4.33 million and cancellation of banker's
cheque against liquidation inquiry of Rs. 4.22 million as well as other accrued expenses of Rs. 2.55 Million
but not payable.

31 MINIMUM TAX

11.]1 Thas represents minimum tax paid under section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance (ITO, 2001), representing
levy in terms of requirements of [FRIC 21/1AS 37,

322 Reconcilistion of current tax charge as per tax laws for the year, with current tax recognised in the profit and
loss account, is as follows:

200 2023
e === Rutpees in 000" -
Current tax liability for the year as per applicable tax laws 1,531 1,240
Portion of current tax Lability as per tax laws, representing income tax . -
under [AS 12
Portion of curent tax computed as per tax laws, representing levy in {1,531) (1.240)
ierms of requirements of IFRIC 2 /IAS 37

323 The minimum tax amountng to Rs, 1,531 million represents tax lability of the Company calculated under
the relevant provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

2024 2023

32 INCOMETAX Note == we Rupees bn 000" == x
Pricr ; - (50)
Dreferred (1,943) (2.045)
[1,943) (2.095)

321 Management has provided sufficient tax provision in financial statements in accordance with income tax
ordinance, 2001, Following is the comparison of tax provision as per accounts vis a vis tax assessment for

last three years:
B
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Tax year 2024
Tax year 2023
Tax year 2022
Tax year 2021

* Income tax assessment for the tax year 2024 has not yet been finalized.

33 LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED (RUPEES)

Less for the year

Weighted average number of shares
Loss per shire - rupees
There is no dibutive effect on the basic boss per share of the Company.

34 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS AFTER Note
WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

Lass before income tax and minimum tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 4.1.1
Finance cost
Imterest on savings acoounts
[nerest on TDR
Gain on disposal of right of use asset

Cash used in operations before working capital changes
Working capital changes Ml
Cash generated from operations after working capital changes

34.1 Working capital changes

{Increase) / decrease in curreni assets
Stock-in-trade
Trade debits
Short term deposits

{Decrease) / increase in curreni fiabifides
Trade and other payables

Deemed -

Aszessment

=== fupees in 000 - - - -

z 1,531
1,240 1,240
1,300 1,350
1,993 1,158

=== Rupees in 000" --- - -

(23.341) { 13,000

- == Number of shares - - -
30977554 30,977 554
{0.75) [0.47)
20 2023
= === Rupees in 000" - - --
(23,754) (13,859)
13,993 14,437
192 261
(402) {172)
(4,203) (1.232)
- (L357)
(14,16%) (2117
17,418 11,628

3,269 9,311
———aa—

11,265 (7,393)
1,121 20,623
12,91 {22,923)
35,309 (9.493)
(17871) 21,121
17,438 11,628

@
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2024 2023
Note == == Rupees in "000" = = - - -
35 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank 3430 3,753
3,430 3,753
sl

36 REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in these financial statements for remuneration provided to the Chief Executive
Officer, Directors and Executives of the Company were as follows:

Chief Executive Dvirector Executives
Officer
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
------------------ Rupeesin 000" == c==2nammmmc-c=z=-
Managernl remuneration 3937 3008 120 . i = o
Number of persons 1 1 1 1 4 =

In addition to the sbove Chiefl executive officer and directors are alo provided with the Company maintaimed
vehicles. ;
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37 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise directors and key management personnel. Amaunts due to / from related parties are shown
under respective note to the financial statements. Details of rermuneration of chief execative officer, directors and
exacutives of the Company are disclosed in note 36, Transactions with the relared parties during the year are a

follows:-
2004 2041
=ss= Rupeesin P00 - czu
Mekmood Al Mehkri - Director

Loan obaained from director during the year 1161 5008
Lian repaid o director during the year a0 4681

Omer Mehkri « Chief Execurtive Officer
Amount payable in respect of salary 6,421 9,735

38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instrument by category

Fingncial assels

= At fair vaiue - through profit or losy
Short term imvestment in wnits of murual funds 14 |4

= At emortized cost
Shon term mvestment in TDR 13,000 13,000
Lang term deposits 3,209 3209
Trade debs 2822 29,43
Shor werm deposits Z ped ra
Clamms recoverable - .
Orhier recetvables 230 o
Irterest receivable 130 79
Cash and tunk balances 3430 3,753

48,335 T1.551

Financial Kabiliter

- Af amartized cost
Lease liabilithes I .
Skoet werm borrowings 3,587 43
Unelaimed dividends 127 1273
Markap accrued Ry 1743
Trade and other payables 17,504 35,366

-I-?IHI &2 022

The Company's activities expose if 10 & variety of financial risks: credit risk, biquidity rsk and market risk
(currency risk, imterest rate risk and price risk). The Company's overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks 1o minimize potential adverse effects on the financial
performance, Overall, risks arising from the Company's financial assets and liabilities are bmuted The
Company consistently manages its exposure to financial risk without any material change from previous
pericd in the manner described in notes below,

Risk managed and measured by the Company are explained
= Credit rigk

- Liquidity risk
= Merkst msk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Company’s risk
manazement framework All treasury related transactions are camried out within the parameters of these

.'. ; policies.
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38,1 Credit risk

Credit nisk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a counterparty 1o a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations. Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk. To
manage exposure to credit nisk, Company applies credit limits and deal with credit worthy parties. It makes
full provision against those balances considered doubtful and by dealing with variety of major banks and
financial institutions.

Exposure fo credit risk

Credit risk of the Company arises principally from long term and short term investments, trade debts, loan
and advances, accrued income, deposits, other receivables and bank balances, The carmryving amount of
financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, To reduce the exposure to credit risk, the Company
has developed its own risk management policies and guidelines whereby credit risk is controlled by
monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties and continually assessing the
creditworthiness of counterpanies. The management continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the
clients and makes provision against those balances considered doubtful of recovery.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure, as specified below: -

204 2823

- === Rupees in "000" - ===~
Short term investment in unis of mutual funds 14 14
Shart term investment in TDR 13,000 18,000

Claims recoverahle - =

Cithier receivables 230 230
Trade debts : 28,222 29,343
Short term deposits ; 72 923
Interest recervable 230 EL
Cash at bank 3430 3.753
43,335 TT.551

=T

Aging of past due but not impaired and past doe impaired trade debis are as follows:
¥ 2024 2023

Gross debis  Impaired  Gross debis  Impaired
L TR T 1 117 SRS e p—

— = R e —— =
Past due 0 - 30 days - - - -
Past due 31 - 180 days 3,877 - 5,267 .
Past due 181-360 days 24 345 . 24,076 "
28,212 - 259343 *

e e e e

Based on the past experience, consideration of financial position, past track records and recoveries, the
Company believes that trade debtors past doe 181 1o 360 days and above do not reguire any impaiment

The Company kept its surplus funds with banks having good credit rating. Currently surplus funds are kept
with banks baving rating from AAA 0 A.

@
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The eredit quality of Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference 1o external credit ratings as
follows:

e e — ]
Rating Rating 2024 10213
Short lerm -y agency - ---Rupeesin "000" - - - - -
B i = e
Shariak Compliant -
United Bank Limted A-1+ AAA JCR-VIS 2 2
Dubai Tslamic Bank Pakistan
Lirmited A1+ AA JCR-VIS 1283 120
Meezan Bank Limited A1+ AAA JCR-VIS 145 3,631
S I

The eredit quality of Company's Investment at fair value through prefil or loss can be assessed with
reference to external credit ratings as follows:

Rating N 2024 2023
ating
Short ferm Long agency =-==Rupeesin 000 =eeua
lerm
Al-Ameen Islamic Sovereign Funds - AA(D JCR-VIS 14 14

382 Liguifiey risk

Liguidity rik is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
fimancial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because
of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilitees carlicr than expected or difficulry
in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilitics as they fall due. The Company's
approach to mamaging liquidity is 10 ensure, a3 far as pessible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and sressed conditions, without incuming unacceptable
Bostes or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on
demand to meet cxpected working capital requirements. The following are the contractual maturibes of
financial liabilities, including interest payments and excluding the impact of nefting agreements: -

The Company is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of its financial liabilities. The table below uuu.]:.r::s the
Company's financial lisbilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining peried al the
reporung date to the contractual maturity date,

Afors than Maore
Carrying Confraciual Up fo wne year bl han It
Aol caxh fTawvd e pear  mor less tham o

JTw Jranr
------ R R ] HII'_P-I'I"I iy 0P " e mmp s mm ===
Filngmcial Habilitles af amerrized easr .
Trads and other payables 17504 17,594 17894 - =
Markup accrued 3,745 3,745 3,745 - =
Shorl lorm ooy ngs 3. 887 3,587 3,587 - -
Unclabmed dividend 1,273 1,273 1,273 - =
Ieass lmbiiirs 21,233 21,233 21,222 - =
Sune 38, 2024 AT 421 47 421 47,421 = =
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Mare haw

Carrying  Confrecinal LUp i ane year bar r;::’:,;"
Amiorri cwnly ffTowes ane year ol fesr fham

Sfive yoar e

----------------- .l!-mrrl.‘.rl' D e s s s cscs -

Fingncial Habilities af amm rtised coxi

Trade and other paynbles 35283 AS2R3S A5 285 = -
Markup acorued 1. T4% 3. 745 A T4% - -
Short term Borroacings dls sils EOE = -
s bninnesed. cliviclemd 1273 1273 1273 - -
Loanc bnlbilathes - - - 21,223 21,733 - i
61,940 61940 61,540 = -

F&.3 Market risk

Market risk means that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices. The objective is 1o
manage and control market sk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimiring the retum.

a) Currency risk

Currency risk arises mainly due to conversion of foreign currency assets and liabilities into local currency.
As at reporting date, the company is not holding any asset or liability in foreign currency therefore, it 13 oot
exposed to any cumency nsk.

) Interest rate risk

Fimancial liabiliies Hs. 24.97 million (2023 : Rs. 24 97 mallion) which are subject to interest rate msk,
Applicable interest/ mark-up rates for financial liabilities have been indicated in respective notes.

Interest’ mark-up rate risk is the nisk that value of a financial instrument or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the market interest! mark-up rates. Sensitivity to interest/ mark up
rate risk arises from mismatches of financial assets and liabilities that mature or re-price in a given period.
The Company manages these mismaiches through risk management strategies where significant changes in
gap position can be adjusted. The Company is not exposed o any shorn tenm borrowing arrangements having
variable rate pricing.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's significant interest bearing finaccial
mstruments was as follows: -
e .

— =
2024 2023
Carrying amount
-= '-RHE in 000" -- -
Variable rate instruments
Financial assets - balances with banks and TDR 16,285 18,122
Financial liabalities 21,222 21,222
F A7.507 10 Y44
e

Sensitivity analysis

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial asset and liabilities at fair value through profit of
loss. Therelore, a change in interest rate will not effect fair value of any financial instrument and company
does not have any variable rate instrument which effect statement of profit or loss and statement of changes
in equity.

B R | | | @_
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The following information summarizes the estimaled effects of hypothetical inereases and decreases in
imberest rates on cash flows from financial assets and liabilities that are subject to interest rate risk. [t i
assumed that the changes occur immediasely and uniformly to each category of instrument containing interest
rate risk. The hypothetical changes in market rates do not reflect what could be deemed best or worst case
scenarios. Vaniations in market inderest rates could produce significant chamges at the time of early
repayments. For these reasons, achial results might differ from those reflected in the details specified below.
The analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

Profit or loss Equiry
T I bp 100 bp 100 bp
fnerease decrease  Imcrease decrease
-------------- H'w_ﬂ-.'.u 1
As af June 30, 2024
Cash flow sensifiviy -
variable rafe instruments ﬂ‘lﬁi 375 ﬂ-ﬂ ¥is
As at hume 30, 2023
Cash flow sensithviry -
variahle rate instruments (333) 393 (393) 393
—— | — S— —
¢} Price Risk

Orther price risk is the sk that the fair value or future cash flows of 2 financial instrument will Muctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or cumency nisk). The
company 5 exposad to price risk with respect 1o equity investment. [nvestments are monitored through
continuous trend prevailing in the market for which an investment commuttee has been setap o ke
ampila dicks

A 10% increase [ decrease in shares / units prices at year end would have increased / decreased the

Coempany’s profit in case of short term investments at fair value through profit or loss and increase [ decrease
in unrealized pain o remeasurement of investments ot fair value through other comprehensive incoms 2

follows:
Ea————————
Profit or lozs and OCT 10%
increase (decrease)
=== Rupees in 000" = = -
As al Jume 30, 2004
Investment a1 fair value through profit or Joss 140 (1.40)
. As o e 30, 2023
b Investment at fuir value through profit or loss 140 (1.40)

SREL s

39 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIARILITIES

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability senled, between knowledgeable,
willing panies in a0 anm's Jength transaction.

A .I "I“u“'hid‘“mmhmmnﬁnmmﬂmeﬁmmﬂL&ilhmm
A ; carrying values of all other financial assets and lishilities reported in the financial statements
approximate their fair valge,

\""'-'-__

m. ™ ey, m—
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In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 13 Fair value measurement, the Company classifies its long term
investrnents and short term investments in terms of following fair valus hierarchy:

Level I: Fair value measurements using qooted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

Level 2; Fair value measarements using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

Level 3: Fair value measurements using Inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable
market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

The following table shows financial instruments recognized at fair value, analyzed between those whose fair value
is based on:

2004
Level ] Level 2 Level 3

Short term investments

Short term Investments

204 Capaciry in 2023

.WEI:' 2t :!.'ﬁl:'lh Actual foms on Actual
shift basis Production  singleshifi  Production
in tons basis in e
40 CAPACITIES AND PRODUCTION
Mild steel wires 1.:200 ’ 1200 52
High carbon steel wires 5,000 425 5,000 380

#0.1 The short fall in capacity utilization is due resumption of production activities after long span.

41 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company'’s objectives when managing capital &re to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concem in order to provide retums for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optime!

capital structure o reduce the cost of capital. The Company has no gearing risk in current year that is to be
managed as it has no have any long term borrowings. The company is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirement.

@
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42 CREDIT FACILITIES
Detail of credit facilities available to Company a3 at the date of statement of financial position is as Tollows:

Lo = avalled S
Nemeof  Neoweof - [faciliy Mricke g ikt o
heul faciity oM N2 NN 00 1034 2024 2034 F ]
.......................... Eapees in Wil s cccssamsnassscsnsscmcanans
Bi% per  OM%per  100% Cash o0 o0
QUATTEr &N quatier o8 Margln, I
Lemer of apse hilmg Gl 3 Liss ever H-'HI‘FL
Dnd bl Creit - o000 000 1558 1T L "'i::'l e Lien over
Syt ainniai Dovaminh _ M

1% per QI%per 100% Cash 100% Cash

2 . gurerie quuictic  Margain Mugss

Exchal b Crmractes . T bepaldim tepadin Margia Margn
sdvance  advance Agcount Assount

2024 023

43 NIUMBEROFEMPIOYEES = mes=se=a Number ennennn
Tatal number cf employees at the end of the year 9 )

Average number of employees during the year —y 18
Employees working in the factory at the year end 5 5

Average employees working in the factory during the year s 2

dd SHARIAH COMPLIANCE DISCLOSURE
As per the requirements of the fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017, companies listed on the Islamic Index

shall disclose the following:
2024 2023
Shariah Shariah
Coaventional Compliant Conventional Comaliant
Rupees in (00 -————
Short term invesiments - 13,014 - 13,014
Bank balances . 3430 - 3,753
Accrusd mark-up 3745 - 3,745 .
Leaze habalicies 121 - 21222
Revenue - 122475 - 99,203
Mark-up income - 4,605 - 1404

|

|

' 45 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

j‘ These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on S¢ptember 25

Qe 2 )

@
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1 "y
M

o
METROPOLITAN STEEL CORORATION LIMITED
Pattern Of Share Holding As At June 30, 2024
Number Of Share Holding Total Shares
Share Holders From To Held

2p30 1 = 100 £0,970

338 101 - 500 88,947

81 501 . 1000 63,338

110 1001 = 5000 260,431

i | 5001 - 10000 156.541

L] 10001 = 15000 7,250

1 15001 - 20000 17.500

1 20001 ” 25000 22,415

i 28001 - 30000 30,0Ca

1 30001 - 35000 61,195

| 45001 - SO000 95,000

1 S5001 = GO0 E0,0C0

1 ED001 = 65000 621,57

2 70001 . 75000 145,178

1 0001 . 85000 81,000

1 Es001 - SO000 a7, oon

1 20001 . 5000 84,000

1 285001 . 290000 220,000

1 313001 - 30000 325 500

1 710001 = TLS000 T12.104

1 1910001 - 1915000 1,913.020

1 3085001 000000 3,087,054

1 23205001 T3F10000 23,210,000
3,609 30,5775
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MSC METROPOLITAN STEEL CORPORATION LIMITED

METROPOLITAM STEEL CORORATION LIMITED
Share Holders Analysis as on 30-06-2024

Number Wumber  Categary wine

5 M. Categorie of Sharehedders ef af Share Ha, of »
Sharebolders el Shares Held

1 Amoceivd Companies Wil
¥ NITSICP 1 30584 Bi6

M.BP Travtes Department B0, 604
3 Names of Dirscton, CEO their Spoures and Minod Childnen 7 13,304,257 %1

W, Mehmood Al Wehid 23,788,094
e, Wybaenad Lhemar haehirl 1.713
M. Ligma Mehmood AR ek 1,500
pAs. Sxba Mgk Paroogqul 3,500
ihts Sofs Zakara 2.500
hEs, Saral W herood WMehicrd 1.500
i, rshad Adi PRafi 1,550

d  Esscuthes M " L
% Pubdic Sector Companies and Corporationa 1 1,562 oo

agew Lifw I, Corportion 1,562

§  Bank finascial Institutions, Non Banking Finandial Institutiont., 13 208,731 0.56
insursnes Campanies, Medaraba, Mutal Funds and others .

#UCD. Securities [Pvt] Ltd 60,000

9577
93T

Commens Bank Lid 7,093
Central Depeaieany Co. of Pakitan = Eeh
Taans Securities [PvE) Lid 2,500
Highlink Capizal [Pri] Lid 2,000
New Jubilee Injurance Company Ltd LE5Q
Seare Tracing Company Lid La41
Office of Assigers of Karachi o35
Fanches Invedtmant L5 580
Marhar Huasain Securities |Pvilm Lid S0
Trustes Ehi- Shevaton Hotel 500
Dy Agministrator Abandoned Properties Drgainiatian 455
Mueerm Searities [Pvi) L2d 155
Aemina Wusliom Girls School Trust 130
SRAD Capital {Pvij Lid 09
Fancy Trustes Lid 156
Habsh Bank Ltd 215
¥.5, Securites (P Lid 1
HUH. Sec (P Lt 103
Aymiio e st L1 100G
Darson Serourities (P Lid =8
B & B Secuntiss (Pvt) Ltd S0
Arat Conparptiaon Lid i3
M. dreitment (Pyvt) L1 10
Sh. Mian ohd, Trust Liyafpud 10
Al Hamea Trading 2
Begurn ARS Jawal Charitable Trust ]
Paliistan Sharehoider Alpn. b
Sarlarar Mahmood |Pet) LEd. 2

Genprad Public  |Local) 1387 7,435,240 24,00

e e —]
Totsd 3609 30,577,554 100,00
sewreholders hodding Shares 18% or maore

Tedal Pasd up Capital 30,977,554 Shared %
Helding

M. Wehmood AN Mehkri I3, 188994 Ta.l8

57
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VISC METROPOLITAN STEEL CORPORATION LIMITED

MSC  Metropolitan Steel Corporation Limited
PROXY FORM

1'We

Folio No being a member of

Metropolitan Steel Corporation Limited hereby appoint

Folio No of

(a member of the Company ) as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my
four behalf at the 69™ Annual General Meeting of thé company to be held on October 23,
2024 at 10:00 am and or at any adjournment thereof.

Signature day of
Revenue
Stamp
of Rs.5/-
Signature

N.B%: 1. Name may be written in Block letters and mention your ledger Folio No. and
also the ledger folio No. of the Proxy holder.

2. Proxy may be given to person who is a member of the Corporation expect in the case
of Companies where the proxy may be given to any of its employees.

3. Proxies in order to be valid must be received by the Company not less than 48 hours
before the meeting,
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MSC

If Undelivered Please return to:

METROPOLITAN STEEL CORPORATION LIMITED.
Plot # HE-1/2, Landhi Industrial Area,

Karachi.



